ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 15, 2007
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 11

Relating to the increased authority granted to the President of
the United States to federalize the National Guard of the
i ndi vidual states w thout the consent of the governors; and
urging the United States Congress to take action to restore the
sovereignty of the individual states to regulate and command the
National CGuard of the states.

- MOVED CSHJR 11(STA) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 171

"An Act relating to the terns of legislators, the date and tine
for convening regular |egislative sessions, adoption of uniform
rules of the legislature and to certain of those rules, the date
for organizing the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmttee, and
deadlines for certain matters or reports to be delivered to the
|l egislature or filed; prohibiting bonuses for |legislative
enpl oyees; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 6
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the office of attorney general.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2007



HOUSE BI LL NO. 62

"An Act providing for partial tuition assistance for famlies of
menbers of the Alaska National GGuard; directing the adjutant
gener al to seek additional funding to support tuition
assistance; and providing for free hunting and sport fishing
licenses for active nenbers of the Al aska National Guard."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 11

SHORT TITLE: STATE'S CONTROL OF NATI ONAL GUARD
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROSES

02/ 28/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 28/ 07 (H) MV, STA

03/ 06/ 07 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 06/ 07 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/ 06/ 07 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 07/ 07 (H) M.V RPT 4DP

03/ 07/ 07 (H) DP: LEDOUX, FAI RCLOUGH, BUCH, ROSES
03/ 15/ 07 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 171

SHORT TI TLE: ACCOMMODATE 90- DAY SESSI ON
SPONSOR(s): RULES

03/ 01/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 01/ 07 (H) STA

03/ 06/ 07 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 07 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 07 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HIR 6
SHORT TI TLE. CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWORD

01/ 25/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 07 (H STA, JUD, FIN
03/ 15/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JOSH APPLEBEE, St aff
to Representative Bob Roses

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2007



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HR 11 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Roses, prime sponsor.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: On behalf of the House Rules Standing

Comm ttee, sponsor by request, whi ch S chaired by
Representative Coghill, presented the sectional analysis in HB
171.

JOHN BOUCHER, Seni or Economni st

Ofice of the Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget (QOvB)

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 171.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HIR 6 as prine sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:03:06 AM Representatives Roses, Coghill,
Johansen, Johnson, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Gruenberg and Doll arrived as the nmeeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HIR 11- STATE' S CONTROL OF NATI ONAL GUARD

8:03: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOCLUTION NO. 11, Relating to the increased authority
granted to the President of the United States to federalize the
National Guard of the individual states w thout the consent of
the governors; and urging the United States Congress to take
action to restore the sovereignty of the individual states to
regul ate and command the National Guard of the states.

8:04:23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES, as prinme sponsor of HIR 11, said the
proposed legislation is designed to enphasize to the US.
Congress the inportance of state sovereignty in ternms of
controlling the Alaska National Guard. He turned over
presentation of the resolution to his staff.

8:05:10 AM

JOSH APPLEBEE, Staff to Representative Bob Roses, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented HIJIR 11 on behalf of Representative Roses,

pri me sponsor. He stated that the 2007 Defense Authorization
Bill signed in to law by the President in Cctober 2006 changed
the 200-year-old Insurrection Act. The change enpowers the

President in future stateside energencies, by allow ng himher
to deploy U S. arnmed forces and federalize state Guard troops

wi t hout consulting the governors within each state, in the event
of a natural disaster, epidemc, or other serious public health
energency, terrorist attack, or incident. M.  Appl ebee
indicated that the governors of all states and U S. territories
have opposed the change. The proposed resolution asks that the
President consult with "the governors and the states before
t aki ng over the National Guards."

8:06:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES indicated that there is a consensus that
the relationship between the arnmed forces and the National Guard
in Alaska is "a nodel to be used for every other state.” |If the
National Guard is busy, the Armed Forces will step in, and vice
versa. He stated there is no reason to change the practice of
conpl ete cooperation that already exists, and he said he feels
strongly about HIJR 11 and encourages everyone to support it.

8:07:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES, in response to a question from Chair Lynn,
said prior to [the 2007 Defense Authorization Bill], all that
was necessary in the case of an energency or national disaster
was for the President sinply to call the governor "and the
governor activates." He said he thinks [the 2007 Defense
Aut hori zation Bill] was "a knee-jerk reaction” to the situation
surrounding Hurricane Katrina, and he said he doesn't think it
sol ves the probl em

8:09: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expressed his appreciation for the
resol ution.

8:10: 24 AM

MR. APPLEBEE, in response to a question from Representative
Coghill, said the |anguage in the resolution was patterned after
several letters sent from the National Governors' Association
(NGA) to U. S. Congress and the President of the United States.

8:10: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL expressed interest in strengthening the
| anguage of the resolution. He directed attention to |anguage
in the "FURTHER RESOLVED' portion of HIR 11, on page 2, lines
10-13, which read as foll ows:

FURTHER RESOLVED t hat t he Al aska State
Legislature wurges federal action to restore the
sovereignty of the individual states to regulate and
command National Guard troops during energencies and
di sasters, and to take whatever additional actions are
necessary to correct t he encr oachnent of
constitutional authority to protect the citizens of
each state.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said states already have sovereignty
under the Tenth Amendnent.

8:12:17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved Anendnent 1 as foll ows:
On page 2, line 11

Del ete "restore"
| nsert "honor"

On page 2, line 12:

Bet ween "what ever" and "acti ons"
Del ete "additional "

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any objection to Anmendnent 1.
There being none, it was so ordered.

8:12: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked if the President, as Conmander in
Chi ef, has the power to override governors at any point.

MR. APPLEBEE responded that the President does not have that
power "at any point." He said the Insurrection Act of 1807
outlines the situations in which the President does have the
power to override the governors, in terns of federalizing the
Nat i onal Guard. The 2007 Defense Authorization Bill gives the
President "additional powers wi thin those confines.”

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked, "Because it was donmestic?"

MR. APPLEBEE answered that's correct.

8:13:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 1, lines
[13-14], which read, "to recognize the mlitia's state role,"
and he suggested that that should be changed to "honor the

mlitia' s state role".

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he thinks "recognize" is the right

word to use. He explained that he had proposed the change in
Amendnent 1 because he didn't want to dimnish the effect of the
| anguage by leaving in the word "restore” on page 2, |line 11.
8:14: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL noved to report HIR 11, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recommendations [and the acconpanying
fiscal notes]. There being no objection, CSHIR 11(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from8:15:09 AMto 8:17:18 AM

HB 171- ACCOVMODATE 90- DAY SESSI ON

8:17:25 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 171, "An Act relating to the terns of legislators, the
date and time for convening regular |egislative sessions,
adoption of uniform rules of the legislature and to certain of
those rules, the date for organizing the Legislative Budget and
Audit Conmittee, and deadlines for certain matters or reports to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2007



be delivered to the legislature or filed; prohibiting bonuses
for legislative enployees; and providing for an effective date.”

8:17:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL referred to a recently passed initiative,
whi ch anmends AS 24.05. 150. He read the anended |anguage as
fol |l ows:

The legislature shall adjourn from a regular session
wi thin 90 consecutive cal endar days, including the day

the legislature first convenes in that regqgular
sessi on. This Act takes effect the first day of the
second regul ar sessi on of t he Twenty-Fifth

Legi sl ature.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said the |egislature needs to accommodat e
the initiative. He said there are 23 sections in the bill, nost
of which address "small novenents of tineline issues.” He said
there will be issues to consider, such as when to start the
session, and whether or not to inpose a rule that would not
allow a bill to be carried into the second year of the session
if it has not passed the first body.

8:.22:17 AM

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of the House Rules Standing
Commi ttee, sponsor by request, whi ch S chaired by
Representative Coghill, presented the sectional analysis in HB

171. She reviewed the sectional analysis for Section 1, which
read as foll ows:

Section 1. Publ i c Saf ety annual report on
activities of t he narcoti c drug and al cohol
enforcement unit wll be available the first day of
sessi on. Currently it is to be made available within
30 days.

M5. MOSS directed attention to a chart included in the committee
packet that shows <current and proposed dates for certain
deadl i nes.
8:24:28 AM

M5. MOSS turned to the sectional analysis for Section 2, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2007



Sec. 2. In odd nunbered years Public Safety
submts their report on repeated child sexual abuse
arrests and crimnal exploitation of children to
| egislature on first day of session.

M5. MOSS reviewed the sectional analysis for Sections 3 through
5, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 3. Changes the beginning of the term of
each menber of the legislature to the second Monday of
February. (in Senate version).

Sec. 4. Starts session the second Monday of
February. (in Senate version).

Sec. 5. Expand the direction of the legislature
to adopt wuniform rules at the beginning of each
sessi on. Currently the legislature adopts uniform

rules in first |legislative session.

M5. MOSS related that the change nade by Section 5 may or nay
not be a good i dea. She explained that the "plus" is that the
adoption of wuniform rules in joint session does not require a
two-thirds vote. However, a two-thirds vote is required in
order to amend the rules by concurrent resolution. She said
that is a policy call that the commttee will have to nake.

M5. MOSS reviewed the sectional analysis for Sections 6 and 7,
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 6. Requires the departnment affected by a
piece of legislation to deliver to a requesting
| egislative comrittee a fiscal note within three days
of the request. This is a change from five days and
after the 90'" day two days.

Sec. 7. Extends the profile [sic] deadline from
January 1 to February 1.

M5. MOSS noted that the word "profile" should be "prefile". She
continued on to the sectional analysis for Section 8, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 8. Requires a bill introduced in the first
| egi sl ative session to be passed through its house of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2007



origin in the first session to be considered in the
second sessi on.

M5. MOSS said Section 8 would not preclude soneone from
introducing a new bill in the second session. She reviewed the
sectional analysis for Sections 9 and 10, which read as foll ows,
[original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 9. Cleans up AS 24.10.220 and clarifies
| egi sl ati ve enpl oyees cannot be awar ded bonuses.

Sec. 10. Requires the Legislative Budget & Audit
Commttee to be organized within 10 days after the
convening of the | egislature.

M5. MOSS noted that currently the Legislative Budget & Audit
Committee has 15 days to organize. She noved on to the
sectional analysis for Sections 11-13, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 11. Requires the Legislative Budget & Audit
Commttee to prepare a report of investnent prograns,
pl ans, performance, and policies of all agencies of
the state that perform | ending or investnent functions
and notify the legislature of the report on or before
the first day of each regular session versus 30 days
after conveni ng.

Sec. 12. Requires the LB & A to file wth the
governor and the legislature its annual report
summarizing audit reports on or before the first day
of session versus within five days.

Sec. 13. Requires APOC to publish a directory of
regi stered |obbyists wthin 15 days after session
convenes. They now have 45 days.

M5. MOSS pointed out that with a session start date of February
5, and without the change nmade in Section 13, APOC s directory
of registered |obbyists would not be delivered until half way
t hrough t he session.

M5. MOSS reviewed the sectional analysis for Section 14, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 14. Elimnates one of the disclosure reports for
contributions nmade to a civic |eague or organization

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 15, 2007



to influence activities of a |egislature. The report
is currently due on February 10'" which nost likely
wll be close to the first day of session.

M5. MOSS said Brooke Mles, the director of APOC, told her APCC
has not figured out a way to inplenent the current statute, and
she noted that there is an anmendnent in the conmttee packet,
upon the recommendation of M. Mles, which would repeal that
statute.

8:28:48 AM

M5. MLES reviewed the remaining portion of the sectiona
anal ysis, covering Sections 15-23, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 15. This section gives the governor an extra 30
days to present to the legislature the annual
operating, capital, and nental health trust budget
bills. The deadline is noved from Decenber 15'" to
January 15N

Sec. 16. Myves the deadline for the governor’s budget
wor kbook to the first Mnday in February versus the
first Monday in January.

Sec. 17. The governor’s request for suppl enental
appropriations nust be provided to the |egislature by
the fifth day of session versus 30'" day and the
governor’s budget anendnents nust be submtted by the
15'" day versus the 45'" day.

Sec. 18. Requires LB & A to prepare a report of
fees collected and recomended fee adjustnents of
state agencies and provide it to the legislature by
the fifth day of session versus 30 days.

Sec. 19. Requires DNR to give notice to the
| egislature within five days from convening that a
report reflecting all noney deposited to the State

Land Di sposal Inconme Fund for the prior fiscal year is
avail able. They currently have until the 30'" day.

Sec. 20. Reduces from 30 to five days after
convening the deadline for DNR to submt a summary of
all *“cooperative resource mnanagenent or devel opnent

agreenments” to the legislature.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 15, 2007



Sec. 21. Requires governor to submt to the
| egislature within 15 days from conveni ng the nanes of
persons appointed to a position or nenbership who have
not been confirmed by the legislature and persons to

be appointed to fill a position or nenbership for a
termthat will expire on or before March 1 during that
sessi on. Current provides for 30 days. It also

instructs the governor to imediately submt the nanme
of someone appointed after the first 15 days by while
the legislature is in regular session.

Sec. 22. The term of office beginning on the
second Monday of February for a nenber of the
legislature first applies to legislators elected
during 2008.

Sec. 23. This legislation has an effective date
of January 1, 2008.

8:32: 07 AM
JOHN BOUCHER, Senior Economst, Ofice of the Director, Ofice

of Managenment & Budget (OwB), Ofice of the Governor, told the
commttee that he is a policy analyst. He said OVB thinks that

the change in Section 15 is unnecessary. He said it is the
opi nion of OVMB that the Decenber 15 budget is a prelimnary one,
and that that version of the budget will inevitably be anended

by the statutory deadline. He said, "Wile it could be argued
that there's a potential benefit of having 30 extra days to

prepare or ... collect information for the Decenber budget, it's
our assessnent that it would be unlikely that this would prevent
an anmended budget occurring." He continued:

Postponing the first budget submttal wuntil January

15, while keeping the current deadline for the budget
anmendnents, significantly conpresses the anmount of
time available to prepare an anended budget from about

five to six weeks. If we kept the Decenber 15 budget
deadline, we'd have about nine to ten weeks to prepare
t hat . And it's currently our assessnment at this tine

that we need that tine.

MR. BOUCHER noted that nmany of the governor's appointees were
not "on board" by Decenber 15. Furthernore, he said there are
statutory "and other"™ nechanisns currently in place to support
t he Decenber 15 deadli ne. He suggested OWB' s preference would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 15, 2007



be to have a couple years' experience using a regular budget
cycle with a later start date for a session, and then revisit
the issue as to January 15 woul d be a good budget deadli ne.

MR. BOUCHER concluded by noting that if all the budget-rel ated
date changes are dependent upon noving the session back 30 days
- if the end result is a conpressed tine to prepare the budget -
than that woul d concern QOVB.

8:35: 37 AM

MR. BOUCHER, in response to a question from Chair Lynn regarding
a later start date for session, said he thinks the bill is
headed in the right direction because of the timng of the
revenue forecast. He said he thinks it would be ill-advised to
nove the Spring forecast up 30 days. He stated, "... Wth the
price of oil the way it 1is, everyone would like the best
information ... possible.” He said he thinks that's the reason

t he revenue deadlines are set the way they currently are.

MR. BOUCHER, in response to Representative Coghill, offered his
understanding that the Spring forecast was tinmed to be closer to
the end of both the fiscal year and the session.

8:37:05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the House Special Commttee on
Ways and Means is dealing with the issue shown in Section 16,
lines 9-14, which read as foll ows:

*Sec. 16. AS 37.07.040(7) is anended to read:

(7) provide the legislative finance
division with an advance copy of the governor's budget
wor kbooks by the first Monday in February [JANUARY] of
each year [, EXCEPT THAT FOLLON NG A GUBERNATORI AL
ELECTI ON YEAR THE ADVANCE COPY SHALL BE PROVI DED BY
THE SECOND MONDAY | N JANUARY] ;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Boucher if he thinks the
| anguage to be deleted on lines 12-14 would affect the ability
of a new adm nistration to prepare an adequate budget.

8:39:25 AM

MR. BOUCHER r esponded:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 15, 2007



If we do keep the Decenber 15 deadline, then | think
[ paragraph] (7) could nore or less stay intact -

it would not need to be anmended - because we would

have the budget in place and we coul d provide that.

: Goi ng back to what | said previously: \Wether the
budget deadline is Decenber 15 or January 15, | think
a new admnistration is handicapped under either
scenario. And | do believe that the best result is to
give the new adm nistration adequate tinme to prepare
an anmended budget, rather than comng in [and] having
to do a quick budget, so to speak, to neet a deadline,
and potentially having expectations set higher because
it is supposedly their budget.

8:41: 42 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Mbss if the various sections

in the bill that will affect different departnents have been
"vetted with those departnents.”

8:42: 08 AM

M5. MOSS said that has not been done wth every single
depart nent. However, she said the sponsor worked with the
Legislative Liaison Ofice. She pointed out that there is "a

zero fiscal note fromall departnents.”
8:43: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, regarding Section 3, posited that
starting session on the second Monday in February would give the
| egislature time to "do a little bit of discovery,”™ nove the
session closer to the spring forecast, and put the session into
nore nonths with typically better weather. He said the big
guestion is whether or not the legislature wants to have its
el ected officials in linbo from Novenber to February.

8:.44.:18 AM

CHAIR LYNN said this is a matter that concerns him He
explained that the person newy elected in Novenber cannot do
anything until February, while the |egislator on his/her way out

is a lanme duck in Novenber and Decenber.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL interjected, "But still [authoritative]."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 15, 2007



CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said Representative Roses had brought up
the possibility of calling into special session those who are

the |l ane ducks. He added, "It gives you a nonth for a possible
scenario where you could put those who have been elected by
their ... citizenry to be ineffective under sone scenarios.”

CHAIR LYNN remarked that being called into a special session
after every election, but before the new session, would nean the
| egislature ends up neeting for 120 days. He indicated that
t here has been precedent on this.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that |egislators cannot be sworn in
until they have convened.

8:46: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES pointed out that the initiative clearly
states that the 90 days nust be consecuti ve. He said that is
unfortunate, because w thout that stipulation the |legislature
could convene in January and take a break in the mddle, which

would allow tinme during the annual Energy Council and Easter
break. He said that is the unfortunate part of initiatives. He
expl ained, "Part of doing a bill 1is that you have these
di scussions and you can vet out the unintended consequences.
But the voters have spoken, and it appears we have to ... at
| east abide by what's there." He stated that it doesn't matter

to him when the legislature convenes, as long as it gets its
wor k done.

8:47:51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said according to statute, the term of
a Representative is two years and the term of a Senator is four

years. He deduced:

The Twenty-Fifth [Alaska] State Legislature wll
be out of office on the third Mnday in January in

20009. The Twenty-Sixth [Alaska State] Legislature
won't convene until the second Mnday in February.
That |leaves the state wthout a legislature for
several weeks, and | think that that violates

Article 2, Section 3.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like the director of
Legislative Legal and Research Services, Tamara Cook, to review
the matter.

8:49:12 AM

M5. MOSS proffered, "That sane section of the constitution says
that their terns begin on the fourth Monday of January foll ow ng
the election, unless otherwi se provided by law, so that can be
fixed by statute.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that it is not a question of
when the term begins, but rather the ampbunt of time |egislators
are in office. He specified that there would be a gap between
the m ddl e of January through the m ddl e of February.

8:50:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if it would be possible to swear in
| egislators on January 2 and wait to convene session until
February. In response to a coment by Chair Lynn, he said
j udges swear people in all the tinme. He said that idea would at
| east cover a special session if it were called January 1.

8:51:15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN expressed appreci ation for
Representative G uenberg's coments. He agreed that there can

be problens inplenmenting citizen initiatives, which he said is
"exactly why we're capable of anmending” them He enphasized how
concerned he is about the lag tinme between |egislators being
el ected, sworn in, and the start of session. He said he is
famliar with what it feels like to sit around and wait, because
he was elected in the primary and had nobody running agai nst him
in the general election.

8:52:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG regarding Representative Johnson's
comment about swearing legislators in early, said doing so can
be wunconstitutional because there would end up being two
different groups of legislators in office sinultaneously.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expl ai ned that he had used January 1 as

an exanple, but it could be another date certain that worked
out .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 15, 2007



8:53:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the Al aska State Constitution

stipulates that the legislature shall convene every year; it
only gives the authority to change the day and the nonth. He
said he was referring to Article 2, Section 8. He said, "You
cannot have officers [and] you cannot swear anybody in until
you' ve actually convened." He said he would task his staff to
get an opinion from Tanmara Cook on the issue. At this point, it
is expected that incomng legislators will be sworn in on the

fourth Monday in January, and nost [outgoing] |egislators would
expect that their termwould end at that point, unless otherw se
notifi ed.

CHAIR LYNN thanked Representative Guenberg for bringing the
issue to the everyone's attention.

8:56:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the bill has urgency, because the
| egi sl ature nust neke plans this year to be ready for what it
must do next year. It is, however, not as easy as it looks to
do so, and there are constitutional issues involved. He cited
[the | ast sentence of] Article 2, Section 8 of the Alaska State
Constitution, which read:

The legislature shall adopt as part of the uniform
rules of procedure deadlines for scheduling session
work not inconsistent with provisions controlling the
| ength of the session.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he does not know if the
| egi sl ature nust change any of its uniform rules to neet that
constitutional question. He recommended |ooking at the entire
bill to see if there are any constitutional issues that need to
be addressed.

8:58:19 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if those issues should be searched for by the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

8:58:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the House State Affairs
Standing Comm ttee do the work.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 15, 2007



CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.
8:59:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES suggested the bill my need work by a
subcomm tt ee.

CHAI R LYNN sai d he woul d not be opposed to that idea.
8:59: 56 AM

REPRESENTATIVE DOLL concurred wth [Representative Rose's
suggestion to forma subcommittee].

9: 00: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he does not think a subcommittee is
necessary. He named the policy calls the commttee nust make:
the date session should start and whether or not a bill should
die if it doesn't pass the first house. The other issues, he
said, will fall into place. At this point, he said, the only
Uni form Rul es change that he anticipates would be in relation to
notification of bills. He reconmended working through one 90-
day session first to "see where the tension lies." He said

anot her issue to consider is how many days to give the governor
to bring an anended budget to the legislature, and he
recomrended 30.

9:03: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d Representative Roses' suggestion
to form a subconmttee nmay be good idea. However, he proposed
an alternative to that idea would be to schedule extra tinme for
the full conmttee to address the bill.

CHAIR LYNN indicated that the public, as well as |egislators,
will be affected by a 90-day session.

9:04: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL reviewed sone of the questions that the
commttee needed to address, including focusing on the tine
bet ween el ection and being sworn in and what would happen if a
speci al session were to be call ed. He reiterated that he would
get a |l egal opinion.

9:05:12 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 15, 2007



CHAIR LYNN said he would hold comment on Section 3 for the
nonent .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he hopes Chair Lynn will be
receptive to anmendnents on all parts of the bill, even if the
commttee noves forward with its study of it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in relation to Section 4 of the bill
cited Article 2, [Section 8], which read as follows [original

punct uati on provided]:

SECTI ON 8. Regul ar Sessions. The |egislature shal
convene in regular session each year on the fourth
Monday in January, but the nonth and day nmay be
changed by law. The legislature shall adjourn from
regular session no later than one hundred twenty
consecutive calendar days from the date it convenes
except that a regular session may be extended once for
up to ten consecutive calendar days. An extension of
the regular session requires the affirmative vote of
at least two-thirds of the nmenbership of each house of
the legislature. The legislature shall adopt as part
of the wuniform rules of procedure deadlines for
schedul i ng session work not i nconsi st ent with
provi sions controlling the |l ength of the session.

9:07:16 AM
CHAIR LYNN directed attention to Section 5.
9:07: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he does not see any redeem ng val ue
in Section 5 at this point.

9:08: 07 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Anendnent 1, as foll ows:
On page 3, lines 3-8:
Delete all material
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he does not recall the |egislature

havi ng adopted the Uniform Rules, and he suggested that a notion
needed to be made on the [House] floor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded, "I've nmade the notion this
year, and every year, at the beginning of the convening of each
session, it is made."

9:09: 07 AM

CHAIR LYNN [asked if there was any objection] to Anendnment 1.
There being none, it was so ordered.

9:09: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he thinks Section 6 is necessary.
He recommended that discussion on Section 7 be held until the
policy call is made on when to start the session.

CHAI R LYNN opened di scussion on Section 8.
9:10: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Amendnent 2, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 4, lines 6-10:
Delete all material
There being no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.
9:11: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL spoke in support of Sections 9 and 10 of
the bill.

CHAIR LYNN ascertained that the conmmittee had no issue wth
Sections 11-13.

9:12: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL rem nded the commttee that Ms. Ml es had
suggested the need to anmend Section 14. He nentioned [Anmendnment
3], which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 6, lines 11-20:

Delete all material

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 15, 2007



Page 9, line 9, after the words "Sec.23."
| nsert:
AS24. 45. 116 i s repeal ed.

Renunbered "This Act takes effect January 1, 2008." as
Sec. 24.

9:13: 23 AM

M5. MOSS reiterated her explanation regarding the practices of
APCC in relation to Section 14.

9:14: 00 AM

[ Arendnent 3 was treated as noved for adoption.]

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he does not have any problem with
Amendnment 3, except for the |anguage on the sixth line of the
anendnent, which "deals with the repealer of the current AS

24.45.116." He said that is substantive.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to see the |anguage
"AS 24.45.116 is repealed."” renmoved from Arendnent 3.

9:14: 37 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he woul d have no objection to that.

M5. MOSS commented that to be clear, lines [4] through 7 [as
nunbered on Amendnent 3] shoul d be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved [to adopt Amendnent 1 to
Amendnent 3, to delete lines 4 through 7, as nunbered on
Amendnent 3].

[ Anvendnment 1 to Amendnent 3 was treated as adopted. ]

9:15:51 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any objection to Anendnent 3, as
anended. There being none, it was so ordered. The adopted
Amendnent 3, as anended, read thus [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Page 6, lines 11-20:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 15, 2007



Delete all materi al
9:16: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, regarding Section 15, said the earlier
the administration can put together the budget, the better for
al | concer ned.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Anmendnent 4 to delete
Section 15 fromthe bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recollected that M. Boucher had
suggested that both Sections 15 and 16 be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he would like any notion to delete
Section 16 to be nmade separately, because he said he thinks
"they are separate discussions.” He explained that Section 16
would be affected by the as yet wundecided start date of the
| egi sl ature, thus discussion of it should be del ayed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurr ed.

CHAIR LYNN said, "So, we'll Ileave that go for now" He
ascertained that the commttee had no issue with Sections 17 and
18.

9:18: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said Section 19 would be affected by the
start date of session. He stated support of Section 20, which
he said would not be affected by the start date. He said that
al though Section 21 nmay be affected by the start date, he
supports requiring the governor to present appointees nanes as
soon as possible and hopes that the governor would agree wth
t he 15-day deadline proposed in that section. He indicated that
Section 22 would enconpass the previously discussed issue
regarding the legality of shifting dates between one |egislature
and anot her.

9:20:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he thinks Section 23, relating to the
effective date of the bill, needs to remain in the bill.

9:20: 54 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he will have a commttee substitute
drafted as soon as possible and procure the previously nentioned
| egal opi nion.

9:21:36 AM

M5. MOSS, returning to a prior question asked by Representative
Johnson, stated that the rule related to convening and swearing
inis Rule Nunmber One of Uniform Rul es.

[HB 171 was heard and hel d.]

HIR 6-CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL

9:21: 54 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the last order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6, Proposing anendnents to the Constitution
of the State of Alaska relating to the office of attorney
general .

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:22:20 AMto 9:23:18 AM

9:23:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, Al aska State Legislature,
i ntroduced HIR 6 as prinme sponsor. He stated that he does not
take making changes to the constitution of the state lightly.
He proposed that HIR 6 is based upon the phil osophical question
of whether or not the attorney general of the state should be
the governor's |awer or the people's top lawer. He stated his
belief that the attorney general should be the top [arbiter] of
law in the state for the people. He related that there have
been attorneys general whose opinions match that of the
gover nor. Furthernore, he said, there have been tines when the
sanme attorney general has served nore than one governor and has
still changed his/her opinion to match that of the governor.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD reported that 43 of the United States
have elected attorneys general, 5 states have appointed ones,
and the suprene court of Mine and Tennessee elect their
attorneys general . He stated his belief that the people should
have the right to decide who their attorney general should be.

9:26: 13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, in response to Chair Lynn, indicated
that if HHR 6 were to pass, the governor would still turn to the
attorney general for advice. If the governor's and attorney
general's phil osophies differ, he said, the Al aska Suprene Court
would be the final [arbiter]. He stated his belief that a
governor will be nore honest in the policies he/she puts forth
when he/she has to get an opinion from an attorney general that
is not beholden to them

9:28:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if any states have a system wherein
they have two el ected attorney generals - one Republican and one
Denocrat - and when the governor is elected, the attorney
general from the political party matching that of the governor
gets the position.

9:28: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD offered his wunderstanding that that
practice has been nade illegal.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he likes the idea of having an
el ected attorney general, but would like to keep the
phil osophical bent the same to avoid law suits between a
governor and attorney general who are constantly at odds wth
each ot her.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he would like to see sone tension
between the attorney general and the governor; he would not I|ike
to see themin | ockstep.

CHAIR LYNN remarked, "Nor would we want to see them opposed on
every issue in the book."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he wouldn't want that to happen
ei t her. He stated, "An office holder is only as good as that
per son. I don't know how we set up a system that weeds out
peopl e that are just conpletely partisan for partisan's sake."

9: 30: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said human error is the sane whether nade
by an appointed attorney general or an elected one. He said he
w Il need nore convincing as to how an elected attorney genera
woul d serve in a better capacity than one appointed. He stated,
"An election is won by sonebody that does a better job of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 15, 2007



canmpai gning than sonebody else; it doesn't necessarily nmean
they're going to be better at the job."

9:32: 22 AM

CHAIR LYNN said if he were governor, he would want an attorney
general who was in his "sanme phil osophical ball park."

9:32:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he thinks electing an attorney general
makes the situation nore political, not |ess.

9:33: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said if he nade that statenent, he had
not neant to. He clarified that the attorney general would be
the people's representative and answerable "nore to the people

than just to the governor."” Currently, the AG is answerable to
the governor and can be fired at any nonent if he/she doesn't
answer to the governor. He said he knows it will be an uphill

battle to change the constitution, with a required two-thirds
majority vote of the legislature and a popular vote of the
people. In response to a question from Representative Roses, he
said to his know edge there has never been a tinme when the
| egislature has failed to confirm an attorney general brought
forward by the governor. He said it could happen, and under
such circunstances "we give the governor his cabinet or her
cabi net, whichever the case may be."

CHAIR LYNN said, "Well, we do have to confirmit. We're just
goi ng through this process now, so we don't have to confirm™

9: 35: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL stated that the reason to have an
appointed attorney general is to give our executive branch as
much authority as is practically possible. He said when Al aska
becane a state, it had to petition federal governnent to contro

its state issues, and so, the thinking was there was a need for
a strong executive branch in order to inpose the state's views.
The trade-off was that the attorney general was not accountable
to the people. He suggested there are two questions to ask:
Whether it has been effective to amal gamate that power in the
executive branch; and whether or not the people have been served
wel | . He said he does not know that the people have been ill-
served; however, he said he is not convinced that "our authority

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 15, 2007



has been well exerted from the executive branch.” He said he
can think of one time when there was msuse of authority such
that he had thought at the tinme that the attorney general should
be elected. He asked Representative Crawford to convince him of
the need for HIR 6.

9:39:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD said he thought long and hard about
exanples he could bring to the commttee; however, the problem
is that exanples that he thinks show that the state has been
totally ill-served may be viewed by others as an exanple of the
state having been well served. He restated his belief that an
attorney general popularly elected is nore accountable to the
peopl e.

9:41:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said the people of Al aska need to be able
to voice their conplaints.

9:42:14 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked Representative Crawford if his argunents would
also apply to the United States Suprene Court. In response to
Representative Crawford, he clarified that there is a need to
take politics "out of it" as much as possible, but those who are
el ected have to canpai gn. He questioned whether politics would
affect the decision that an elected attorney general would give
to the governor or the people.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said the 43 states that elect their
attorneys general seem to be satisfied with that nethod. He
stated that politics is just sonething that nust be dealt wth
on a daily basis, and he related his belief that an attorney
general could deal with the sanme politics that |egislators do.
He said there are many people qualified to be an attorney
general that nay never get appointed by a governor because they
m ght be too independent. |In response to Chair Lynn, he said he
believes the state superintendent of education should be an
el ected position, but he said that is another discussion to be
held at a | ater date.

9:46: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he would get copies of the mnutes
fromthe original Al aska Constitutional Convention to share with
the commtt ee.

9:46: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she thinks HIR 6 is a good issue to
addr ess. She asked if the attorneys general that run for
el ection in the various 43 states run on party |ines.

9:46: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said attorneys general in those states
don't have to politicize their canpaigns, but they can if they
Wi sh. In response to a followup question from Representative
Doll, he said the proposed resolution would set up a four-year
term for each attorney general. He said he has requested an
amendnent to set a two-term limt, the same as that of the
gover nor. The attorney general could sit out for a term after
two consecutive terns and then once again be eligible to run.

9:48: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 1, line 10,
of HIR 6, which proposes to delete "[SECRETARY OF STATE]" and
replace it with "lieutenant governor". He said he is wondering
if that needs to be done in other parts of the constitution.
Representative Guenberg stated that an inportant question to

ask is: "Whom does the attorney general represent? Does the
attorney general represent the governor or the best interest of
the state, of people, whoever?" He said the answer to that

guestion is key to deciding whether or not to adopt HIR 6. He
suggested that the Al aska Bar Association |ook at that question.
He explained, "Because it's axiomatic in the profession; you
can't represent two clients.” He offered an exanple. If the
| egislature were to decide that there is a conflict, he said, it
should pass a specific statute addressing the ethical
responsibilities of the attorney general. He nentioned other
gquestions, such as who should make the decision whether or not
to litigate or appeal and what the guidelines should be. He
said, "... | think this puts the legislature squarely in the
role of making that decision, and I would like this commttee to
consider carefully whether there is a conflict of interest and,
if so, how do we best deal with it?"

9:54: 36 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 15, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD r esponded:

| believe that Representative Guenberg has ... hit
the nail squarely on the head as to what the problem
iS. ... | perceive there to be a conflict of
i nterest: Wenever the attorney general owes his

position to the governor and can be fired at any
nmonment at the pleasure of the governor, then | believe
that they are nore accountable to the governor than
they are to the people and good | aw.

As far as having the bar association look at this, |
don't see where their authority to look at this cones
from | believe that this is a question for the
| egi sl ature and the general public to decide.

| believe that there is an inherent conflict the way
it's set up today, and | believe that although it
doesn't guarantee that you'll get a good attorney
general every tinme, what it does guarantee is that you
get an i ndependent attorney general.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, regarding the idea that the office of
attorney general nay be politicized and used as a stepping stone
to run for governor or United States Senator or Representative,
of fered exanpl es of that happeni ng.

9:57:24 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES said he agrees wth much of what
Representative Gruenberg said, with the exception of getting the

opinion of the Al aska Bar Association. In terns of addressing
some of the conflicts, he said he thinks that needs to be done
whether the attorney general is elected or appointed. One
conflict, he suggested, may be the need for an el ected attorney
general to run for re-election while still serving office. He
said there nay be a potential for ethical conflicts. He said

"W have a confirmation process, and if |I'm not mstaken do we

not also have a process where if we think sonebody's doing a
pretty poor job that we could work towards renoving them from
that of fice?"

9:59:10 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he would leave it up to the

committee's wisdomto determ ne whether to inpose termlimts in
a way that would not make it necessary for the attorney genera

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 15, 2007



to canpaign while in office. He said, "The way it's set up
right now, the attorney general can be the governor's flunky.
"' m not saying that's happened.”

10: 00: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said the Alaska State Constitution very
deliberately gives a trenmendous anount of power to the governor
He said he is not certain any other state has done the sanme. He
said he thinks the founding fathers nade the right decision.

CHAIR LYNN questioned whether HIR 6, in conmbination with the
upcom ng change to a 90-day session would give extra power to
t he governor.

10: 01: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD sai d he believes Al aska has outgrown the
need for "super powerful governorship.” He said he believes in
giving nore power to the people.

10: 02: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she is inpressed that 43 states "found
this very inmportant and have put it into effect.” She asked how
much such an el ection would cost.

10: 02: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he would have to get back to
Representative Doll wth that information. He noted that an
el ection for attorney general would not be held outside other
el ections, thus "it would be partly borne in the cost of the
other elections that are being held at the sane tine."

10: 03: 39 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HIJIR 6 was heard and hel d.
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 04: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 15, 2007



